
 
 
 
 
 

MEETING NOTICE 
VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK 

MEETING OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a Committee of the Whole Meeting of the Village of Tinley 
Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois will be held on Tuesday, October 1, 2019, beginning at 7:00 p.m. in 
Council Chambers, located in the Tinley Park Village Hall, 16250 South Oak Park Avenue, Tinley Park, 
Illinois 60477. 

 
The agenda is as follows: 
 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER. 
 

2. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
MEETING HELD ON SEPTEMBER 3, 2019. 
 

3. DISCUSS COMPREHENSIVE FEE STUDY. 
  

4. RECEIVE COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC. 
 
 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 

KRISTIN A. THIRION 
VILLAGE CLERK  



 

 MINUTES 
Meeting of the Committee of the Whole 

 September 3, 2019 - 6:45 p.m. 
Village Hall of Tinley Park – Council Chambers 

16250 S. Oak Park Avenue 
Tinley Park, IL 60477 

 
Members Present:  M. Glotz, President Pro-Tem 
    C. Berg, Village Trustee 
    W. Brady, Village Trustee 
    W. Brennan, Village Trustee 
    D. Galante, Village Trustee 
    M. Mueller, Village Trustee 
         
Members Absent:  None 
        
Other Board Members Present: J. Vandenberg, President 
    K. Thirion, Village Clerk    
 `    
Staff Present:   D. Niemeyer, Village Manager 
    F. Reeder, Fire Chief 
    M. Walsh, Police Chief 
    S. Tencza, Patrol Commander - Arrived at 6:56 p.m. 
    B. Bettenhausen, Village Treasurer 
    P. Connelly, Village Attorney 
    D. Maiolo, Human Resources Director 
    K. Workowski, Public Works Director 
    K. Clarke, Community Development Director 
    D. Framke, Marketing Director 
    H. Lipman, Management Analyst 
    D. Sanfilippo, Executive Assistant to the Mayor 
    L. Godette, Deputy Village Clerk 
    L. Carollo, Commission/Committee Secretary 
      
Item #1 - The meeting of the Committee of the Whole was called to order at 6:48 p.m. 
 
Item #2 – CONSIDER APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE 
WHOLE MEETING HELD ON AUGUST 6, 2019 – Motion was made by President Pro-Tem Glotz, 
seconded by Trustee Galante, to approve the minutes of the Committee of the Whole meeting held on 
August 6, 2019.  Vote by voice call.  President Pro-Tem Glotz declared the motion carried. 
 
Item #3 – DISCUSS CANNABIS LAWS - D. Niemeyer stated the Cannabis Regulation and Tax Act 
was passed in May, which will legalize marijuana in the state beginning January 1, 2020.  The goal is to 
have discussions with the Village Board regarding this new law as several informed decisions will need to 
be made.  Topics for this evening's discussion included: 
 

• Opt out of the law and prohibit cannabis dispensing businesses. 
• If the Village does not opt out, what zoning regulations will be enacted to limit the commercial 

production or distribution of adult-use cannabis?  The Village can also regulate the time, place, 
manner and number of cannabis business operations, including minimum distances between 
locations through conditional use permits.      



 

Page 2 of 3 
 

• Allow on premise use of cannabis?  If yes, where? 
• What type of inspection process for these businesses and what civil penalties will be established 

for businesses violating the Village's regulations? 
• Impose a sales tax on cannabis and adult-use cannabis related products, with the maximum being 

3% of the purchase price? 
• The Village will review and potentially update personnel policies related to this new law.  A 

separate discussion will follow with suggested updates to the personnel manual provided to the 
Village Board.   

 
A presentation was given by P. Connelly, Village Attorney of the Cannabis Regulation and Tax Act 
entailing the following: 
 

• Regulation of Adult-Use Cannabis Businesses as Allowed by the Illinois General Assembly's 
Recreational Marijuana Bill; 

• Illinois State Licensing; 
• Zoning/Regulatory Abilities of the Village; 
• Law Enforcement Facts & Implications; 
• Tax Revenue. 

 
Mr. Connelly asked the Committee of the Whole if there were any questions.  In response to President 
Vandenberg's question, Mr. Connelly stated there is no correlation to the Liquor Commissioner's Office 
and the Act, as cannabis will be state licensed and liquor and video gaming are licensed locally.  The 
Village has received calls regarding the Village's position on the Act from medical dispensaries currently 
operating and interested in expanding.  Mr. Connelly discussed taxation and forthcoming trailer bill(s) 
from the state to clarify ambiguous information.  The opt-out process was also explained to the 
Committee.  In response to Trustee Berg's question, it is uncertain at this time how revenue will flow as 
currently medical cannabis is a cash only business.   
 
Trustee Brennan asked about enforcement.  S. Tencza, Patrol Commander stated there will still be zero-
tolerance enforced with cannabis in relation to driving under the influence.  Mr. Tencza explained how 
the process of a DUI will change, i.e. more time for police to process and more costs may be involved, as 
well as additional tests to aid the police in testing for impairment.  Cannabis will be measured in 
nanograms within an individual and a standard impairment level has already been identified.  The 
burden will be on police to prove impairment in an individual when stopped for an infraction.  Police 
will continue to monitor and undergo additional training in this new practice.    
 
K. Clarke, Community Development Director stated currently medical dispensaries are classified as a 
Special Use in the M-1 District.  Discussion continued on surrounding communities' position, tax 
revenue, zoning and the black market on cannabis to continue.  President Pro-Tem Glotz stated the 
Committee needs more information; however, if the Village Boards decides to allow cannabis, a cap 
should be in place with no deviation from the cap and he would prefer dispensaries be placed in industrial 
locations.  Trustee Mueller stated he agrees with a small cap and is against cannabis lounges.  Trustee 
Brennan stated he is also opposed to cannabis lounges and agrees with placing dispensaries within 
industrial locations.  Trustee Brady also opposes cannabis lounges and agrees to a cap to be placed.  
President Vandenberg stated if the Village Board decided to move forward, he believes these would be 
the right ideas and a good direction for consideration.  M. Walsh, Police Chief stated a cannabis 
dispensary currently operating in Worth on Harlem Avenue has not had any problems.  Mr. Tencza 
recommended the placement of cannabis dispensaries in highly visible locations as they can be more 
effectively observed and monitored as these types of businesses are targets for burglaries.                        



 

Page 3 of 3 
 

Item #4 – RECEIVE COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC - Nancy O'Connor asked Mr. Connelly if 
the bill includes a cap on THC percentage for recreational use, for which he was uncertain at this time.  
Ms. O'Connor stated she is in favor of allowing cannabis dispensaries to operate within the Village 
provided there is a cap on the dispensaries, they are in highly visible locations and security within the 
dispensaries.   
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Motion was made by Trustee Berg, seconded by Trustee Brady, to adjourn this meeting of the Committee 
of the Whole.  Vote by voice call.  President Pro-Tem Glotz declared the motion carried and adjourned 
the meeting at 7:38 p.m. 
 
lc 
 
 



1 
 

 
 
 
Date: October 1, 2019 
 
To: Committee of the Whole (Board of Trustees) 
 Dave Niemeyer, Village Manager 
   
From: Daniel Ritter, AICP 
 Senior Planner 
  
Subject: Recommendation to for Commercial Fee Increases and Comprehensive Fee Schedule 
  
Background 
 
Upon reviewing the appropriateness and adequacy of numerous Village fees, staff from different 
departments identified several commercial or development-related fees that were comparatively low in 
comparison with comparable communities. Staff looked at creating adequate fee levels that cover 
appropriate costs for new projects. Most of the fees have not been updated in over 10-20 years. Typically, 
fees should be reviewed every few years to ensure they remain in line with the market. However, due to 
the time that has passed since the last updates, fees are not only low but many do not cover a standard 
level of “hard” or “up-front” costs associated with the request. 
 
For any fee, there is a policy decision to be made as to how much of the total cost of a project is covered 
by the fee. Traditionally, municipalities (including Tinley Park) have not sought to charge an applicant all of 
the costs related to development projects because the review of projects is an appropriate use of the 
General Fund. It is assumed that projects performed for a fee, will result in work that will increase property 
values for the subject property and quality-of-life for residents. Most fees are usually set with the goal of 
covering any “hard” or “up-front” costs related to projects (postage, mailings, paper, third-party consultant 
fees, etc.) so that the Village’s general fund is protected from incurring any costs from private projects that 
can potentially end up incomplete or abandoned. Due to decreasing revenue sources, many communities 
have begun to adopt a policy that private development projects should pay their own way and all 
associated costs so that existing residents are not subsidizing any portion of private projects. 
 
Fee Increases 
 
The proposed fee increases are primarily those that are for new development projects and events 
(commercial and residential). The only increases to residential-related fees are for Residential Variation 
requests and to increase the minimum fee for all building permits to $50 to cover basic administrative and 
review costs. The majority of fees that are proposed to be increased include those associated with public 
hearings, plan reviews, commercial building permits, new residential construction, new utility connections, 
and private use of Fire Department personnel (it is expected that the cost for private use of Police 
Department personnel will also be increased in the near future). The fees being increased are currently 
being subsidized by the general fund at a high level. 
 
Surrounding communities were included in the analysis for each fee to best understand where each 
proposed fee falls in comparison with our neighboring communities. For many fees, Tinley Park is 
currently the lowest. These comparisons indicate that there is room to cover a greater amount of the 

Interoffice   

Memo 



2 
 

upfront costs and protect the general fund, while also ensuring that Tinley Park remains competitive with 
other developing communities. Staff has made an initial recommendation for each fee that is either set at 
the average or slightly below average fee level compared to our neighboring communities. The fees were 
set at those levels to prevent large increases and to allow a more gradual increase over time. The 
proposed fee levels also ensure that Tinley Park remains a competitive and attractive community for 
developers and businesses to operate.  
 
The proposed fee increases were discussed and approved at their individual Committees (Community 
Development, Public Works, and Public Safety). Upon direction from the Committee of the Whole, staff will 
draft the appropriate text amendments. The fee increases are proposed to become effective on January 1, 
2020, but will not be applied to any projects that have already submitted their applications prior to that 
date. 
 
Comprehensive Fee Schedule 
 
While reviewing the fee levels, staff also encountered an issue that Village fees are scattered in many 
different codes and ordinances. This not only makes it very difficult for customers (residents, property 
owners, developers, contractors, etc.) to know where to find specific fee information but also makes it 
difficult to enforce or update fees consistently.  
 
To enhance staff efficiency and increase customer service, staff is recommending that a comprehensive 
fee schedule be developed in the Code of Ordinances, which will list all fees charged by the Village. In 
addition to simplifying the process, the changes will make any future amendments easier to complete. The 
Plan Commission reviewed the removal of fees from the Zoning Code and unanimously recommended 
approval of those changes. Staff is looking for direction to begin drafting the applicable text amendments 
so that all fees charged by the Village are located in a single comprehensive fee schedule that will be 
located in the Village of Tinley Park Code of Ordinances. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Direct staff to create a comprehensive fee schedule listing all fees charged by the Village to be located in 
the Code of Ordinances and include recommended increases to fees to cover upfront costs that are 
competitive with neighboring community’s fee levels. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3 
 

Commercial & Development Fee Changes 

Fee Type Current Proposed Recommendation 

Planning 
Annexation $0 $750   0-1 acre 

$1500 1.01-5 acres 
$3000 > 5.01 acres 

Raise – based on staff time, 
upfront costs, and comparable 

communities. 

Variation – Non-
Residential 

$200 $500 + $75 per 
additional Variation 

Raise - based on staff time, 
upfront costs, and comparable 
communities. Avoids repetitive 

or arbitrary requests. Clarify 
multi-request fees. 

Variation – Residential $150 $250 + $75 per 
additional Variation 

Raise - based on staff time, 
upfront costs, and comparable 
communities. Avoids repetitive 

or arbitrary requests. Clarify 
multi-request fees. 

Rezoning $400 $750 Raise - based on staff time, 
upfront costs, physical changes 

to maps, and comparable 
communities. 

Special Use Permit / PUD $400 $500 Raise - based on staff time, 
upfront costs, and comparable 

communities. 
Site Plan Approval (Non-
Residential & Multi-
Family) 

$0 $500 New 
$300 Amendment 

Raise – based on staff time, 
upfront costs, and comparable 
communities. Removal of other 

unused development fees 
below. 

Plats (Preliminary & 
Final Subdivision, 
Easement, etc.) 

$1 per lot (min. 100 for 
preliminary; $50 for final) 

$500 + $5 per lot Raise - based on staff time, 
upfront costs and comparable 

communities. 

New Development 
Approval Not Including 
Public Improvements 

$300 acre, $1,000 min. Eliminate Eliminate – Not Utilized in 
practice. Site Plan and Plat fees 

to replace. 

Zoning or Subdivision 
Code Text Amendment 

$0 $500 Raise - based on staff time, 
upfront costs and comparable 
communities. Avoids repetitive 

or arbitrary requests. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



4 
 

 
 
 
 

Fee Type Current Proposed Recommendation 

Building 

Commercial Building 
(New and Remodel) 
Permits 

$30 ($100 to $1,500) 
$40 ($1,500 to $3000) 
$50 ($3,000 to $6,000) 

$80 ($6,000 to $12,000) 
$110 ($12,000 to $18,000) 
$130 ($18,000 to $24,000) 
$160 ($24,000 to $30,000) 

$160 + $6/$1,000 ($30,000+) 
 

+$50 per inspection 

$100 ($0 to $6,000) 
$150 ($6,001 to 

$24,000) 
$200 ($24,001 to 

$30,000) 
$200 + $8/$1,000 

($30,000+) 

Raise – Based on staff review 
time and comparable 

communities (see attached 
Building Fee spreadsheet 

comparison). 

Residential Remodel 
Permit 

$30 ($100 to $1,500) 
$40 ($1,500 to $3000) 
$50 ($3,000 to $6,000) 

$80 ($6,000 to $12,000) 
$110 ($12,000 to $18,000) 
$130 ($18,000 to $24,000) 
$160 ($24,000 to $30,000) 

$160 + $6/$1,000 ($30,000+) 
 

+$50 per inspection 

Increase Minimum to 
$50. 

 

$50 ($100 to $6,000) 
$80 ($6,001 to 

$12,000) 
$110 ($12,001 to 

$18,000) 
$130 ($18,001 to 

$24,000) 
$160 ($24,001 to 

$30,000) 
$160 + $6/$1,000 

($30,000+) 
 

+$50 per inspection 

Raise Minimum - Based on 
upfront costs and staff review 

time. 

New Residential 
Building Permits 

$550 $100 ($0 to $6,000) 
$150 ($6,001 to 

$24,000) 
$200 ($24,001 to 

$30,000) 
$200 + $8/$1,000 

($30,000+) 

Raise – Based on staff review 
time and comparable 

communities (see attached 
Building Fee spreadsheet 

comparison). 

Plan Review $10.00 ($100.00-$1,500.00) 
$20.00 ($1,500.00-$3,000.00) 
$40.00 ($18,000-$24,000.00) 
$50.00 ($24,000-$30,000.00) 

$60.00 + $2.00/$1,000.00 
($30,000.00+) 

 

Electric plan exam fee 
$50/hour 

 

No plan review fee for new 
residential construction 

5% of permit fee, $50 
min. 

Raise – Based on staff review 
time and comparable 

communities (see attached 
Building Fee spreadsheet 

comparison). Change calculation 
method based on standard 

practice and ease of calculation. 

    
    
    
    
    



5 
 

    
    

Fee Type Current Proposed Recommendation 

Building Continued 

Permanent Signs Building – $1/sf, $25 min. per 
sign 

 

Zoning – $1/sf, $15 min. per 
sign 

 

+electrical fees 
 

*With two conflicting codes 
the smaller amount is used 

$1/sf, $50 min per sign 
 

+electrical fees 

Raise Minimum - Based on 
upfront costs and staff review 

time. 

Temporary Signs Building – $15/sign 
 

Zoning – $50/sign 
 

*With two conflicting codes 
the smaller amount is used 

$50/sign Raise Minimum - Based on 
upfront costs and staff review 

and inspection follow-up time to 
ensure removal. 

All Building Fees Varies Min. $50 Raise Minimum - Based on 
upfront costs and staff review 

time. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



6 
 

Fee Type Current Proposed Recommendation 

Public Works 
Water & Sewer 
Connection (Tap-on) 
 

Water - $150 per inch + meter 
fee 

Sewer - $200 

Residential - $6,000 
1” Commercial - $7,250 

1.5” Commercial - 
$12,000 

2” Commercial - 
$19,000 

3” Commercial - 
$46,000 

4” Commercial – 
$68,000 

4”+ - To be negotiated 
with Village based on 

associated costs of the 
proposed 

development. 

Raise – Based on staff review 
time, inspection time, long-term 
costs to utility system, required 

utility upgrades and comparable 
communities (see Public Works 
Dept./Village Engineer memo). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



7 
 

Fee Type Current Proposed Recommendation 
FIRE 

Fire Alarm Plan Review $50 $50 – Small (10 devices 
or less) 

$100 – Large (more 
than 10 devices) 

New – Based on staff review 
time and comparable 

communities (see Fire Dept. 
memo). 

Fire Protection/Sprinkler 
Plan Review 

$0 $50 – Small (20 devices 
or less) 

$100 – Small (more 
than 20 devices) 

New – Based on staff review 
time and comparable 

communities (see Fire Dept. 
memo). 

Fire Protection/Sprinkler 
Permit 

$15 $50 + .50 per sprinkler 
head/nozzle 

Raise – Based on staff review 
time and comparable 

communities (see Fire Dept. 
memo). 

Fixed Extinguishing 
System 

$0 $100 New – Based on staff review 
time and comparable 

communities (see Fire Dept. 
memo). 

New Construction Fire 
Review 

$50 $100 Raise – Based on staff review 
time and comparable 

communities (see Fire Dept. 
memo). 

New Construction Fire & 
Life Safety Plan Review 

$0 $100 New – Based on staff review 
time and comparable 

communities (see Fire Dept. 
memo). 

New Construction/ 
Acceptance Testing 

$0 $100 New – Based on staff time/cost 
and comparable communities 

(see Fire Dept. memo). 
CPR $45/person $45/person Same – Existing fee approved 

around 2012 but never formally 
codified. 

Special 
Effects/Pyrotechnic 
Permit 

$500 $500 Same – Previous used an “other” 
permit fee. Will codify this fee. 

Fire Department 
Personnel Cost 

$0/hr $75/hr per person New - Non-village sponsored 
events with direct costs to the 

Village payroll (can include 
overtime). 

 
 
 
Attachments 



Interoffice

,

Memo
Date: june 24, 2019

To: Trustee Mueller, Chair
Community Development Committee
Dave Niemeyer, Village Manager

From: Daniel Ritter, AICP
Senior Planner

Subject: Recommendation to for Development Fee Increases

Background

Upon reviewing the appropriateness and adequacy of numerous Village fees, Community

Development staff identified a number of commercial and development-related fees that were

comparatively low. Staff looked at creating adequate fee levels that cover appropriate costs for

new projects. Most of these fees have not been updated in over 1 0-20 years. Due to the time

that has passed since the last updates, fees are extremely low and many do not cover a standard

level of “hard” or “up-front” costs for most projects or services. For any fee, there is a policy

decision to be made as to how much of the total cost of a project is covered by the fee.

Traditionally, municipalities (including Tinley Park) have not sought to charge an applicant all of

the costs related to development projects because the review of projects is an appropriate use of

the General Fund. It is assumed that projects performed for a fee will increase property values

and quality of life for the subject property and residents. Most fees are usually set with the goal

of covering any “hard” or “up-front” costs related to projects (postage, mailings, paper, third-

party consultant fees, etc.) so that the Village’s general fund is protected from incurring any costs

from private projects that could also end up incomplete or abandoned. Due to decreasing

revenue sources, many communities have begun to adopt a policy that private development

projects should pay their own way and all associated costs so that existing residents are not

subsidizing any portion of private projects.

The proposed fee increases are primarily those that are assessed for new development

(commercial and residential) and commercial projects/events. The only increases to residential-

related fees would be for a Variation request and the establishment of a minimum fee of $50 for

all building permits. The majority of fees that are proposed to be increased include those

associated with public hearings, plan reviews, commercial building permits and new residential

Life Amplified



construction. These fees are currently being subsidized at a high level by the general fund

compared to the up-front and hard costs associated with each request.

Surrounding communities were included in the attached analysis to understand where each

proposed fee level falls in comparison with our neighboring communities. For many fees, Tinley
Park is currently the lowest. These comparisons show that there is room to cover a greater

amount of the upfront costs while also ensuring that Tinley Park remains competitive within the
commercial and development communities, while also protecting the general fund. Staff has

made an initial recommendation for each fee that is either set at the average or slightly below

average compared to our neighboring communities. Upon direction from the Committee, staff

will draft the appropriate text amendments for the proposed fee increases.

Other departments and there appropriate Committees are also reviewing fees for other items

including utility connections and usage of Police, Fire and Public Work Department staff for non-
village special events. Individual departments will be presenting staff recommendations to their

respective committees. After all committees have reviewed and made their recommendations a
presentation will be made a the Committee of the Whole on july 1 6th•

While reviewing the fee levels, staff also encountered an issue that Village fees are scattered in
many different codes and ordinances. This not only makes it very difficult for customers
(residents, property owners, developers, contractors, etc.) to know where to find specific fee
information but also makes it difficult to enforce or update fees consistently. To enhance staff
efficiency and increase customer service, staff will also be recommending that a comprehensive
fee schedule be developed in the Code of Ordinances which will list all fees charged by the
Village. In addition to staff and customer clarity, the changes will make any future amendments
easier to complete. The timing of these fee amendments will coincide with the overall Building
Code update, which is expected to be adopted by the Village Board at the September 3, 2019
meeting.

Recommendation

Direct staff to make recommended increases to planning, zoning and building-related fees as
listed below, to better cover upfront costs while remaining competitive with neighboring
commu nities.

Attachments

Life Amplified



.

-

Commercial & Development Fee Changes

Fee Type

I

Current Proposed

I

Recommendation

:
Planning

Annexation so $750 > 1 acre Raise - based on staff time,
$1 500 1 -5 acres upfront costs, and comparable

$3000 < 5 acres communities.

Variation — Non-Residential $200 $500 + $75 per Raise - based on staff time,

additional Variation upfront costs, and comparable

communities. Avoids repetitive or

arbitrary requests. Clarify multi-

request_fees.

Variation — Residential $1 50 $250 + $75 per Raise - based on staff time,

additional Variation upfront costs, and comparable

communities. Avoids repetitive or

arbitrary requests. Clarify multi-

request_fees.

Rezoning $400 $750 Raise - based on staff time,

upfront costs, physical changes to

maps, and comparable

communities.

Special Use Permit I PUD $400 $500 Raise - based on staff time,

upfront costs, and comparable

communities.

Site Plan Approval (Non- $0 $750 New Raise - based on staff time,

Residential & Multi-Family) $300 Amendment upfront costs, and comparable

communities. Removal of other

unused_development_fees_below.

Plats (Preliminary, Final $1 per lot (mm. 1 00 for $500 + $5 per lot for Raise - based on staff time,

Subdivision, Easement, preliminary; $50 for final) multi-lot plats upfront costs and comparable

etc.) communities.

New Development $300 acre, $1,000 mm. Eliminate Eliminate - Not Utilized in

Approval Not Including practice. Site Plan and Plat fees to

Public Improvements replace.

Zoning or Subdivision Code $0 $500 Raise - based on staff time,

Text Amendment upfront costs and comparable

communities. Avoids repetitive or

arbitrary requests.

Building

Commercial Building (New $30 ($1 00 to $1 ,500) $1 00 ($0 to $6,000) Raise - Based on staff review

and Remodel) Permits $40 ($1 ,500 to $3000) $1 50 ($6,000 to time and comparable

$50 ($3,000 to $6,000) $24,000) communities (see attached

$80 ($6,000 to $1 2,000) $200 ($24,000 to Building Fee spreadsheet

$1 1 0 ($1 2,000 to $1 8,000) $30,000) comparison).

$1 30 ($1 8,000 to $24,000) $200 + $8/$1 ,000

$1 60 ($24,000 to $30,000) ($30,000+)

$160 + $6/$1,000
($30,000+)

+$50 per inspection

Life Amplified



$30 ($1 00 to $1,500)
$40 ($1,500 to $3000)

$50 ($3,000 to $6,000)
$80 ($6,000 to $1 2,000)

$1 1 0 ($1 2,000 to $1 8,000)

$1 30 ($1 8,000 to $24,000)

$1 60 ($24,000 to $30,000)

$1 60 + $6/$1 ,000
($30,000+)

+$50 per inspection

Increase Minimum to

$50.

$50 ($1 00 to $6,000)
$80 ($6,000 to

$1 2,000)
$110($12,000to

$1 8,000)
$1 30 ($1 8,000 to

$24,000)
$1 60 ($24,000 to

$30,000)
$160 + $6/$1,000

($30,000+)

+$50 per inspection

Residential Remodel

Permit

Raise Minimum - Based on
upfront costs and staff review

time.

New Residential Building $550 $1 00($0 to $6,000) Raise - Based on staff review

Permits
$1 50 ($6,000 to time and comparable

$24,000) communities (see attached
$200 ($24,000 to Building Fee spreadsheet

$30,000) comparison).
$200 + $8/$1,000

($30,000+)

Plan Review $1 0.00 ($1 00.00- 5% of permit fee, $50 Raise - Based on staff review
$1,500.00) mm. timeandcomparable

$20.00 ($1,500.00- communities (see attached
$3,000.00) Building Fee spreadsheet

$40.00 ($1 8,000- comparison). Change calculation

$24,000.00) method based on standard
$50.00 ($24,000- practice and ease of calculation.

$30,000.00)
$60.00 + $2.00/$1,000.00

($30,000.00+)

Electric plan exam fee
$50/hour

No plan review fee for
new residential

construction

Permanent Signs Building - $1/sf, $25 mm. $1/sf, $50 mm per sign Raise Minimum - Based on
per sign upfront costs and staff review

. .
+electrical fees time.

Zoning — $1/sf, $15 mm.
per sign

+electrical fees

*With two conflicting
codes the smaller amount

is_used

Temporary Signs Building - $1 5/sign $50/sign Raise Minimum - Based on

.
upfront costs and staff review

Zonmng-$50/smgn . .

and inspection follow-up time to
*With two conflicting ensure removal.

codes the smaller amount
is_used

Tw(ezff4E
Life Amplified



V
IL

L
A

G
E

O
F

T
IN

L
E

Y
P

A
R

K

P
la

nn
in

g
an

d
Z

on
in

g
F

ee
A

na
ly

si
s

Fe
e

T
yp

e
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t
C

od
e

lo
ca

ti
on

!
C

ur
re

nt
Fe

e
P

ro
po

se
d

Fe
e

C
om

m
en

ts
C

om
pa

ra
bl

e
(0

=

O
rd

in
an

ce
#

O
rl

an
d

Pa
rk

,
F=

F
ra

nk
fo

rt
,

M
=

M
ok

en
a,

N
=

N
ew

L
en

ox
)

A
nn

ex
at

io
n

C
om

m
un

it
y

Z
on

in
g

C
od

e
—

$0
$7

50
>

1
ac

re
R

ai
se

—
ba

se
d

on
0

:
$7

50
—

1,
35

0
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

N
/A

$1
50

0
1-

5
st

af
f

ti
m

e,
up

fr
on

t
N

:
$1

35
0

—
41

00
+

(+
ac

re
s

co
st

s
an

d
$2

00
A

nn
ex

at
io

n
$

3
0

0
0

<
s

co
m

pa
ra

bl
e

A
gr

ee
m

en
t)

ac
re

s
co

m
m

un
it

ie
s.

F
:7

50
-3

00
0+

M
:

$8
00

+
V

ar
ia

nc
e

-
C

om
m

un
it

y
Z

on
in

g:
Se

c.
X

-
$2

00
$5

00
+

$7
5

R
ai

se
-

ba
se

d
on

st
af

f
0:

$5
00

C
om

m
er

ci
al

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
G

-2
(2

00
7-

0-
pe

r
ad

di
ti

on
al

ti
m

e,
up

fr
on

t
co

st
s,

N
:

$8
50

02
4)

V
ar

ia
ti

on
an

d
co

m
pa

ra
bl

e
F:

$3
00

co
m

m
un

it
ie

s.
A

vo
id

s
M

:
$1

40
0

(i
nc

lu
de

s
re

pe
ti

ti
ve

or
se

p
ar

at
e

Pu
bl

ic
he

ar
in

g
ar

bi
tr

ar
y

re
qu

es
ts

.
fe

e
th

at
ca

n
be

sp
li

t
C

la
ri

fy
m

ul
ti

-r
eq

ue
st

am
on

g
m

ul
ti

pl
e

fe
es

.
ap

pl
ic

an
ts

)
V

ar
ia

nc
e

-
C

om
m

un
it

y
Z

on
in

g:
Se

c.
X

-
$1

50
$2

50
+

$7
5

R
ai

se
-

ba
se

d
on

st
af

f
0

:
$5

00
R

es
id

en
ti

al
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

G
-2

(2
00

7-
0-

pe
r

ad
di

ti
on

al
ti

m
e,

up
fr

on
t

co
st

s,
N

:
$3

50
02

4)
V

ar
ia

ti
on

an
d

co
m

pa
ra

bl
e

F:
$2

00
co

m
m

un
it

ie
s.

A
vo

id
s

M
:

$1
02

5
(i

nc
lu

de
s

re
pe

ti
ti

ve
or

se
p
ar

at
e

Pu
bl

ic
he

ar
in

g
ar

bi
tr

ar
y

re
qu

es
ts

.
fe

e
th

at
ca

n
be

sp
li

t
C

la
ri

fy
m

ul
ti

-r
eq

ue
st

am
on

g
ap

pl
ic

an
ts

)
fe

es
.



R
ez

on
in

g
C

om
m

un
it

y
Z

on
in

g:
S

ec
.

X
-

$4
00

$7
50

R
ai

se
-

ba
se

d
on

st
af

f
0

:
$5

00
D

ev
el

o
p
m

en
t

K
(2

00
7-

0-
02

4)
ti

m
e,

ph
ys

ic
al

N
:

$6
00

—
20

00
+

ch
an

g
es

to
m

ap
s

an
d

F:
$8

00
co

m
p
ar

ab
le

M
:

$1
40

0-
18

00
co

m
m

u
n
it

ie
s.

(i
nc

lu
de

s
se

p
ar

at
e

he
ar

in
g

fe
e)

S
pe

ci
al

U
se

P
er

m
it

C
om

m
un

it
y

Z
on

in
g:

S
ec

.
X

-
$4

00
$5

00
R

ai
se

-
ba

se
d

on
0

:
$5

00
I

PU
D

D
ev

el
o
p
m

en
t

J-
3

(2
0
0
7
-0

-
co

m
p
ar

ab
le

N
:

$8
50

+
02

4)
co

m
m

u
n
it

ie
s.

F:
$5

00
M

:
$8

00
S

it
e

P
la

n
(I

nc
lu

de
s

C
om

m
un

it
y

Z
on

in
g:

S
ec

.
Ill

-
$0

$5
00

R
ai

se
—

b
as

ed
on

0
:

$6
00

-1
50

0
+

si
te

la
yo

ut
,

D
ev

el
o
p
m

en
t

U
(1

9
8
7
-0

-
N

ew
/F

ir
st

st
af

f
ti

m
e,

u
p
fr

o
n
t

L
an

ds
ca

pe
re

vi
ew

fe
es

ar
ch

it
ec

tu
ra

l,
00

2)
A

pp
ro

va
l

co
st

s,
an

d
$2

50
0-

50
00

la
nd

sc
ap

in
g

an
d

$3
00

co
m

p
ar

ab
le

N
:

$2
50

+
L

an
ds

ca
pe

li
gh

ti
ng

)
A

m
en

d
m

en
t

co
m

m
u
n
it

ie
s.

re
vi

ew
fe

es
of

$5
00

-
R

em
ov

al
of

o
th

er
10

50
+

un
us

ed
d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t
F:

$7
00

($
10

0-
30

0
fe

es
be

lo
w

.
am

en
d

m
en

t)
M

:
$3

50
P

la
ts

C
om

m
un

it
y

S
ub

di
vi

si
on

:
$1

pe
r

lo
t

$5
00

+
$5

p
er

R
ai

se
-

ba
se

d
on

st
af

f
0

:
$5

00
+

25
p
er

lo
t

(P
re

li
m

in
ar

y/
F

in
al

D
ev

el
o
p
m

en
t/

P
W

S
ec

.
X

Ill
-F

(m
m

.
$1

00
lo

t
fo

r
m

ul
ti

-
ti

m
e,

u
p
fr

o
n
t

N
:

$1
50

+
25

p
er

lo
t

S
ub

di
vi

si
on

,
(2

0
0
7
-0

-0
4
1
)

fo
r

lo
t

pl
at

s
re

co
rd

in
g

co
st

s
an

d
F:

$5
00

-
40

00
+

E
as

em
en

t,
et

c.
)

pr
el

im
in

ar
y;

co
m

p
ar

ab
le

M
:

$1
60

0
$5

0
fo

r
co

m
m

u
n
it

ie
s.

fi
na

l)
N

ew
D

ev
el

o
p
m

en
t

C
om

m
un

it
y

S
ub

di
vi

si
on

:
$3

00
ac

re
,

E
li

m
in

at
e

E
li

m
in

at
e

—
N

ot
N

/A
A

pp
ro

va
l

N
ot

D
ev

el
o
p
m

en
t/

P
W

S
ec

.
X

lll
-E

$1
00

0
m

m
.

U
ti

li
ze

d.
C

om
bi

ne
d

In
cl

ud
in

g
P

ub
li

c
(2

0
0
7
-0

-0
4
1
)

w
it

h
S

it
e

P
la

n
an

d
Im

p
ro

v
em

en
ts

P
la

ts
.

Z
on

in
g

o
r

C
om

m
un

it
y

Z
on

in
g

an
d

$0
$5

00
R

ai
se

-
ba

se
d

on
st

af
f

S
ub

di
vi

si
on

C
od

e
D

ev
el

o
p
m

en
t

S
ub

di
vi

si
on

ti
m

e,
u
p
fr

o
n
t

co
st

s
T

ex
t

A
m

en
d
m

en
t

C
od

es
an

d
co

m
p
ar

ab
le

co
m

m
u
n
it

ie
s.

A
vo

id
s

re
p
et

it
iv

e
or

ar
b
it

ra
ry

re
q

u
es

ts
.



C
0

0.
E
0

a)
a)

E
a)

an
C
•0

a)
E
E
0

a)
0.
0
a)

a)



Village ofTinley Park

Existing Building Department Fees Under $50

General Building Permits (Commercial and Residential Remodels):

Construction Work Costing $1 00 - $1 ,499 = $30

Construction Work Costing $1 500 - $5,999 = $40

Certificate of Occupancy - $25

Change of Use Inspection - $30

Signs - $1/sf mm $25

Temp signs - $15



Developer/Commercial Building Permit Fee Comparisons

TYPE OF PERMIT Village of Tinley Park Recommendation Average Village of Orland Park Village of New Lenox Village of Homer Glen Village of Frankfort Village of Oak Forest Elmhurst

Building Permits - Residential Remodel 

$30 ($100 to $1,500)
$40 ($1,500 to $3000)
$50 ($3,000 to $6,000)

$80 ($6,000 to $12,000)
$110 ($12,000 to $18,000)
$130 ($18,000 to $24,000)
$160 ($24,000 to $30,000)

$160 + $6/$1,000 ($30,000+)

+$50 per inspection

$50 ($0 to $6,000)
$80 ($6,000 to $12,000)

$110 ($12,000 to $18,000)
$130 ($18,000 to $24,000)
$160 ($24,000 to $30,000)

$160 + $6/$1,000 ($30,000+)

$2.65 per 100 cubic feet, Minnimum of $90.00. 
For all Com/Ind/Res, New and Remodel.

$8.00 per $1000.00 of estimated cost
Minnimum $500.00. For all Com/Ind/Res, New 

and Remodel.

Residential is generally $9/$1,000,  minimum of 
$50.

Additional fees per square footage:
$150 (401-1000 sq. ft.)

$200 (1001-2000 sq. ft.)
$250 (2001-3000 sq. ft.)
$300 (3001-4000 sq. ft.)

$16 for each additional (1000 sq. ft.)

$25 ($0-$100)
$100 ($100-$1000)

$150 ($1000-$2000)
$175 ($2000-$2500)
$200 ($2500-$5000)

$200+$15/$1000 over $5000

+ outside consultant review costs

Additions to existing and accessory structures 
shall be multiplied by two percent (2%).  Inlcudes 

all inspections.

$339 small res remodel
$1,080 a floor <500 sf
$2,027 a floor >500 sf

+additional fees for electric and accessory 
structures

Building Permit - Commercial New and 
Remodel

Commercial Remodeling

$30 ($100 to $1,500)
$40 ($1,500 to $3000)
$50 ($3,000 to $6,000)

$80 ($6,000 to $12,000)
$110 ($12,000 to $18,000)
$130 ($18,000 to $24,000)
$160 ($24,000 to $30,000)

$160 + $6/$1,000 ($30,000+)

+$50 per inspection

$100 ($0 to $6,000)
$150 ($6,000 to $24,000)

$200 ($24,000 to $30,000)
$200 + $8/$1,000 ($30,000+)

$2.65 per 100 cubic feet, Minnimum of $90.00. 
For all Com/Ind/Res New and Remodel.

$8.00 per $1000.00 of estimated cost
Minnimum $500.00. For all Com/Ind/Res, New 

and Remodel.

Commercial  is generally $8.50/$1,000, minimum 
of $50

plus additional fee/s.f by use type ranging from 
$50/sf for mfg to $80/sf for high hazard

New Fee: $.50/ sf

Remodel Fees:
$25 ($0-$100)

$100 ($100-$1000)
$150 ($1000-$2000)
$175 ($2000-$2500)
$200 ($2500-$5000)

$200+$15/$1000 over $5000

+ outside consultant review costs

Fee is determined by the median square footage 
price listed in the RSMeans Construction Cost 

Data book (current edition), or the value of the 
project indicated on the permit, whichever is 

higher. This value shall be multiplied by one and 
one half percent (1 1/2%) for the first five 

hundred thousand ($500,000) dollars of value, 
one and one quarter percent (1 1/4%) for five 
hundred thousand ($500,000) to one million 

dollars ($1,000,000) of value and one percent 
(1%) of value thereafter. This fee shall include all 

necessary building inspections for this permit, 
and will not be less than $100.

Remodel/Minor: Greater of $655, 1% of 
construction cost or $1/sf

New/Major: Greater of 1,258, 1% of 
construction cost or $1/sf of building area

Building Permit
New Residential Construction

Single Family Homes and individual Multi-Family 
units pay an all inclusive fee of $550 which 
includes general Bulding, Plumbing, Sewer, 
Water distribution (excluding tap on fees) 
Electric Work, and HVAC and Gas piping.  

Reinspection fees are not included, however.

$100 ($0 to $6,000)
$150 ($6,000 to $24,000)

$200 ($24,000 to $30,000)
$200 + $8/$1,000 ($30,000+)

$2.65 per 100 cubic feet, Minnimum of $90.00. 
For all Com/Ind/Res New and Remodel.

$8.00 per $1000.00 of estimated cost
Minnimum $500.00. For all Com/Ind/Res, New 

and Remodel.

Residential is generally $9/$1,000,  minimum of 
$50.

Additional fees per square footage:
$150 (401-1000 sq. ft.)

$200 (1001-2000 sq. ft.)
$250 (2001-3000 sq. ft.)
$300 (3001-4000 sq. ft.)

$16 for each additional (1000 sq. ft.)

$.40/ sf new residential

+ outside consultant review costs

Permit fee is the median square footage price 
listed in the SMeans Square Foot Cost Data book 

(current edition as of the first of the calendar 
year), or the value of the project indicated on 

the permit, whichever is higher. This value shall 
be multiplied by one and one quarter percent (1 

1/4%). This fee shall include all building 
inspections and will not be less than $100. 

Single-Fam: $8,004
Townhome: $5,336

Condo/Apt: Commercial rate

Plan Review

$10.00 ($100.00-$1,500.00)
$20.00 ($1,500.00-$3,000.00)
$40.00 ($18,000-$24,000.00)
$50.00 ($24,000-$30,000.00)

$60.00 + $2.00/$1,000.00
($30,000.00+)

No Bldg plan review fee for new residential 
construction

Electric plan exam fee $50/hour

5% of permit fee, $50 min.

Base Plan Review  - New SFR or 
Remodeling/additions $350  $120.00 (if adding 

<50% Floor Area) + trades for both
Commercial construction is by cubic volume 

(with remodeling at lower rate )    

New SFR Energy Code $75, 
SFR Additions - Energy Code $50

SFR additions and remodeling (<50% footprint) 
$120

Commercial construction by cubic feet ranging 
from $180 through 20,000 cf to $760/200,000 cf 

+ $12/each 10,000 cf additional

Re-reviews $60/hour

Deposit Required 
$0-100,000 ($250.00)

$100,000-250,000 ($500.00)
$250,000-500,000 ($750.00)

$500,000-1,000,000 ($1,000.00) 

$150 (401-1000 sq. ft.)
$200 (1001-2000 sq. ft.)
$250 (2001-3000 sq. ft.)
$300 (3001-4000 sq. ft.)

$16 for each additional (1000 sq. ft.)
$100 (All mobile homes)  

$25.00 ($0-$2000)
$50.00 ($2001-$10,000)

$75.00 ($10,001-$25,000)
$100.00 ($25,001-$100,000.00)

Over $100,000.00 a
10% Plan Review Fee over

and above the building permit cost

Any engineering reviews, plan reviews, special 
inspections, or inspections needed from an 
outside firm will be billed at cost plus ten 

percent (10%).

In Permit Cost

Estimated - Business Project Cost 
Permit Only - 5,000 sq. ft. valued at 
852,000 (based on ICC Value data)

5092 + Inspection fees (~500) = ~5592 $6,776.00 $6,756.00 Unknown, guess is around 8,000 $6,816.00 $7,242.00
$4,700

2700 fee + all Outside review fees (~2,000)
$11,900.00 8,520

Estimated - Industrial project 5,000 
square feet shell valued at 451,000 

(based on ICC Value data)
2746 + inspection fees (~500) = ~3246 $3,568.00 $4,772.54 Unknown guess is around 12,000 $3,608.00 $3,833.00

$4,700
2700 fee + all Outside review fees (~2,000)

$6,765.00 5,000

Estimate - New residnetial 2,000 sq ft 
valued at $279,000 (based on ICC value 

data)
$550.00 $2,192.00 $2,444.21 unknown $2,232.00 $2,711.00

$1,800
$800 + all Outside review fees (~1,000)

$3,487.50 8,004



Developer/Commercial Building Permit Fee Comparisons

Elgin Matteson Midlothian Oak Lawn Hoffman Estates

$50 per 100 sf, $100 min
+$70 elec

1% of Value (based on 
applicant/construciton value)

$60 per 100 sf
+ inspection fees and elec

$.40 per sf

+ Plumbing and Electric

Additions: .35 per sf, $30 min.
Remodel: 0.5% of costs, $30 min

+$9 fixture, $50 min

New: $50/100 sf floor space
Remodel: $60 per $1000 const. value

+$270 elec
+$70/fixture for plumb

New: 1% of Value (based on ICC 
valuation)

Remodel: 1% of Value (based on 
applicant/construciton value)

$55 per 100sf above grade base 
+ inspection fees and elec

.5 sf

Remodel: $75 (0-1500 sq. ft)
$100 (1501-2500)

$125 (2,501 - 5000)
$150 (5001-7500)

$175 (7501-10000)
$200 (10000-50000)

$250 (50000+)

+ Plumbing and Electric

1% of construction costs, $50 min.
+$50 per plumbing fixture

$50/ 100 sf floor space (incl basement), $100 
min.

+400 Elec sfr or $270 multi-fam
+$330 plumb per unit 

1% of Value (based on icc valuation)

$55 per 100 sf above grade base +
various other fees (garages, basement, 
masonry, chimney, etc.) SF and multi-

fam
+ inspection fees and elec

$.50 per sf
$100 + $30 per unit after 2  - multi-fam

+ Plumbing and Electric

.35 per sf for single and multi-family
+$50 per plumbing fixture

25% of permit fee

Third Party: 
Cost to Village + 10% of permit fee, max 

$500 (value more than $25k)
Cost to Village + $35 (Value less than 

$25k)

In-house - 20% of permit fee, max $1,500

$175 Res Building
$200 Resi Fire/Life Safety

$275 Comm Building
$300 Comm fire/ life safety

Any Third-party review costs + 5%

10% of permit, $25 min.

10% of permit fee.

Minnimums:
100 - New Com

50 - Comm remodel/addition
75 - new residential

25 - residnetial remodel/addition

2,500 8,520 2750 + inspection fees = ~3000 2,500 + inspection fees = ~3,000 8,520

2,500 4,510 2750 + inspection fees = ~3,000 2,500 + inspection fees = ~3,000 4,510

1,730 2,790 1100 + inspection fees = ~1,500 $1000 + elec, plumb, inspection fees = ~1,500 $700 + Elec & plumb = ~1,000



August 15, 2019 – WORKSHOP / PUBLIC HEARING 

 
Text Amendment – Planning/Zoning Fee Changes 

 
 

 
Upon reviewing the appropriateness and adequacy of numerous Village fees, Community 

Development staff identified a number of commercial and development-related fees that 

are comparatively low. Staff looked at creating adequate fee levels that cover appropriate 

costs for new projects. Most of the fees have not been updated in over 10-20 years. Due to 

the time that has passed since the last updates, fees are extremely low and many do not 

cover a standard level of “hard” or “up-front” costs associated with the request.  

 

While reviewing the fee levels, staff also encountered an issue that Village fees are scattered 

throughout many different codes and ordinances. This not only makes it very difficult for 

customers (residents, property owners, developers, contractors, etc.) to know where to find 

specific fee information, but also makes it difficult to enforce or update fees consistently. 

To enhance efficiency and increase customer service, staff has proposed that a 

comprehensive fee schedule be developed in the Code of Ordinances, which will list all fees 

charged by the Village. In addition to staff and customer clarity, the changes will make any 

future amendments easier to complete.  

 

Staff was directed to proceed with the fee changes as proposed at the June 25, 2019 

Community Development Committee meeting. Other department fee changes are in the 

process of going through their respective Committees before the final text amendments 

are drafted. As part of the adoption of the new comprehensive fee schedule ordinance, 

amendments to the Zoning Code are necessary to remove the fees currently listed there.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
Petitioner 

Village of Tinley Park 

 

 

Property 

Village-Wide 

 

Approvals Sought 

Text Amendment 

 

 

 

 

 

Project Planner 

Daniel Ritter, AICP 

Senior Planner 
 



Text Amendment – Fee Updates 

 

Page 2 of 5 

 
For any fee, there is a policy decision to be made as to how much of the total cost of a project incurred will be covered 

by the fee. Traditionally, municipalities (including Tinley Park) have not sought to charge an applicant all of the costs 

related to development projects because the review of projects is an appropriate use of the General Fund. It is 

assumed that projects performed for a fee will increase property values for the subject property and quality-of-life 

for residents. Most fees are usually set with the goal of covering any “hard” or “up-front” costs related to projects 

(postage, mailings, paper, third-party consultant fees, etc.) so that the Village’s general fund is protected from incurring 

any costs from private projects that can potentially end up incomplete or abandoned. Due to decreasing revenue 

sources, many communities have begun to adopt a policy that private development projects should pay their own 

way and all associated costs so that existing residents are not subsidizing any portion of private projects. 

 

The proposed fee increases are primarily those that are assessed for new development projects (commercial and 

residential). The only increases to residential-related fees is for Residential Variation requests. Surrounding 

communities were included in the attached analysis to understand where each proposed fee level falls in comparison 

with our neighboring communities. For many fees, Tinley Park is currently the lowest. These comparisons show that 

there is room to cover a greater amount of the upfront costs and protecting the general fund, while also ensuring that 

Tinley Park remains competitive within the commercial and development communities. 

 

The planning, zoning, and building fee increases were reviewed at the June 25, 2019 Community Development 

Committee meeting. Other departments have brought their increases forward to their applicable Committees over 

the last few months. All fee increases and the comprehensive fee schedule is currently scheduled to go to a Committee 

of the Whole meeting in early-September 2019 and the text amendments going before the Village Board soon after. 

 

 
All fee amounts referenced in the Zoning Code are proposed to be relocated to the Village’s Code of Ordinances along 

with all other fees charged throughout the Village. Below is an example of the existing and proposed text regarding 

fees for Special Uses. This will be similar to all sections within the code. The exact section of the Code of Ordinances 

and wording has yet to be determined. 

 

Existing Section X.J.3 (Special Uses – Initiation) 

 

“Initiation: An application for a Special Use may be made by any person, firm, or corporation having a free-hold interest, an 

option to purchase, or any exclusive possessory interest which is specifically enforceable on the land which is described in 

the application for a Special Use. The filing fee for a Special Use shall be four hundred (400) dollars.” 

 

Proposed Section X.J.3 (Special Uses – Initiation) 

 

“Initiation: An application for a Special Use may be made by any person, firm, or corporation having a free-hold interest, an 

option to purchase, or any exclusive possessory interest which is specifically enforceable on the land which is described in 

the application for a Special Use. The filing fee for a Special Use shall be adopted by the Board of Trustees in the 

Comprehensive Fee Schedule (Title XXX, Appendix XXX of the Tinley Park Code of Ordinances)” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Text Amendment – Fee Updates 

 

Page 3 of 5 

 
Following below is a list of the fees located in the Zoning Code. The amount of the fees has already been discussed 

and approved at the Community Development Committee. The chart indicates the current location in the Village Code, 

current fee level, proposed fee level, and comparison fees of neighboring communities. The recommendation for 

each fee is proposed at either the average or slightly below average compared to neighboring communities. In 

addition, new fees have been introduced that were not previously codified.  

 

The purpose of the Public Hearing is to recognize the proposed changes and remove any reference to fees in the 

Zoning Ordinance.  The Plan Commission’s recommendation for this text amendment will be reviewed by the Village 

Board at the same time they consider the adoption of the new Fee Schedule Ordinance, thereby ensuring that there 

is always a code requiring fees for development .  

 

 

Fee Type Code 
location/ 
Ordinance 
# 

Current Fee Proposed 
Fee 

Comments Comparable (O = 

Orland Park, F= 
Frankfort, M = 
Mokena, N = New 
Lenox) 

Annexation Zoning 
Code – 
N/A  

$0 $750 > 1 
acre 
$1500 1-5 
acres 
$3000 < 5 
acres 

Raise – based on 
staff time, 
upfront costs 
and comparable 
communities. 

O: $750 – 1,350 
N: $1350 – 4100+ 
(+ $200 
Annexation 
Agreement) 
F:750-3000+ 
M: $800+ 

Variance - 
Commercial 

Zoning: 
Sec. X-G-2 
(2007-O-
024) 

$200 $500 + $75 
per 
additional 
Variation 

Raise - based on 
staff time, 
upfront costs, 
and comparable 
communities. 
Avoids repetitive 
or arbitrary 
requests. Clarify 
multi-request 
fees. 

O: $500 
N: $850 
F: $300 
M: $1400 (includes 
separate Public 
hearing fee that 
can be split among 
multiple 
applicants) 

Variance - 
Residential   

Zoning: 
Sec. X-G-2 
(2007-O-
024) 

$150 $250 + $75 
per 
additional 
Variation 

Raise - based on 
staff time, 
upfront costs, 
and comparable 
communities. 
Avoids repetitive 
or arbitrary 
requests. Clarify 
multi-request 
fees. 

O: $500 
N: $350 
F: $200 
M: $1025 (includes 
separate Public 
hearing fee that 
can be split among 
applicants) 

Rezoning Zoning: 
Sec. X-K 

$400 $750 Raise - based on 
staff time, 

O: $500 
N: $600 – 2000+ 



Text Amendment – Fee Updates 

 

Page 4 of 5 

(2007-O-
024) 

physical changes 
to maps and 
comparable 
communities. 

F: $800 
M: $1400-1800 
(includes separate 
hearing fee) 

Special Use 
Permit / PUD 

Zoning: 
Sec. X-J-3 
(2007-O-
024) 

$400 $500 Raise - based on 
comparable 
communities. 

O: $500 
N: $850+ 
F: $500 
M: $800 

Site Plan 
(Includes site 
layout, 
architectural, 
landscaping 
and lighting)  

Zoning: 
Sec. III-U 
(1987-O-
002) 

$0 $500 
New/First 
Approval 
$300 
Amendmen
t 

Raise – based on 
staff time, 
upfront costs, 
and comparable 
communities. 
Removal of other 
unused 
development 
fees below. 

O: $600-1500 + 
Landscape review 
fees $2500-5000 
N: $250 + 
Landscape review 
fees of $500-1050+ 
F: $700 ($100-300 
amendment) 
M: $350 

Plats 
(Preliminary/
Final 
Subdivision, 
Easement, 
etc.) 

Subdivisio
n: Sec. XIII-
F (2007-O-
041) 

$1 per lot 
(min. $100 for 
preliminary; 
$50 for final) 

$500 + $5 
per lot for 
multi-lot 
plats 

Raise - based on 
staff time, 
upfront 
recording costs 
and comparable 
communities. 

O: $500 + 25 per 
lot 
N: $150 + 25 per 
lot 
F: $500 - 4000+ 
M: $1600 

New 
Development 
Approval Not 
Including 
Public 
Improvements 

Subdivisio
n: Sec. XIII-
E (2007-O-
041) 

$300 acre, 
$1000 min. 

Eliminate Eliminate – Not 
Utilized. 
Combined with 
Site Plan and 
Plats. 

N/A 

Zoning or 
Subdivision 
Code Text 
Amendment 

Zoning 
and 
Subdivisio
n Codes – 
N/A 

$0 $500 Raise - based on 
staff time, 
upfront costs 
and comparable 
communities. 
Avoids repetitive 
or arbitrary 
requests. 

N/A 

 

 

 

 

Staff identified the following open items for discussion at the workshop: 

 

1. Discuss the incorporation of planning and zoning fees into a comprehensive fee ordinance. 



Text Amendment – Fee Updates 

 

Page 5 of 5 

 

If the Plan Commission wishes to take action, the following motion is in the appropriate form: 

 

“…make a motion to recommend that the Village Board approve Text Amendments to 
Section III-O-6-(2)-(C) (Outdoor Display Fees), Section IX.B.2. (Sign Fees), and Section X 

(Administration and Enforcement) of the Village of Tinley Park Zoning Ordinance as 

indicated in Staff’s most recent Staff Report dated 8/15/2019. The proposed Text 

Amendments increase a number of planning and zoning-related fees and move all fees 

to a Comprehensive Fee Schedule located in the Village of Tinley Park’s Code of 

Ordinances.” 











































-









 

 

PUBLIC 
COMMENT 

 



 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 


	100119 Cow Agenda
	090319 Approval COW Minutes 
	ITEM #3 - Fee Study 
	ITEM #4 - Public Comment



